











BOARD OF GOVERNORS, 1957

COLLEGE

Chairman: J. S. CAUGHEY, Esq.

Chairman of College Committee: MR. E. P. SALMON. Chairman of Farm Committee: MR. A. W. WESTNEY.

MEMBERS:

The Reverends F. COPELAND, E. W. HAMES, M.A.; G. I. LAUREN-SON. A. H. SCRIVEN, E. TE TUHI, W. WALKER, SIR JOSEPH STANTON. Messrs. S. J. CLARK, C. DARBY, H. M. DENTON, W. E. DONNELLY, T. L. HAMES, R. D. MILLER, C. N. NICHOLLS, M.A.; P. RUSHTON, E. P. SALMON, A. C. A. SEXTON, LL.M.; A. W. WESTNEY, A. M. WINSTONE,

PRINCIPAL:

THE REV. E. M. MARSHALL, B.A., Dip. Ed. Wesley College, Paerata.

GENERAL SECRETARY: MR. G. C. B. MINOGUE

STAFF:

School:

MR. J. L. BALLANTINE, M.A. (Hons.) (First Assistant) MISS B. H. MARSHALL (Intermediate) MR. H. H. MARSHALL, B.A. MR. J. V. BUCKTON (Woodwork) MR. F. F. M. ROWLAND, B.Sc. MR. R. W. BURROW, B.A. MR. T. CRUDGINGTON MR. C. LAURIE (Music)

Outside Staff:

MR. J. L. BROWNING (Farm Manager) MR. J. HACKETT (Farm) MR. M. WELHAM (Farm) MR. R. WYATT (Farm) MR. M. B. KNOTT (Grounds Overseer) MR. W. T. SAPSFORD (Handyman) MR. F. H. HARTRIDGE (General Hand) MR. W. E. REEVE (General Hand) MR. J. YOUNG (General Hand) MR. B. SMYTH (Nurseryman)

Matron: MISS I. LESLIE

Assistant Matron: MISS M. WILLCOX

Bursar: MR. H. C. SQUIER, Cert. A.I.B. (London)

Office Assistant: MISS M. H. HARRIS

Organist and "Society Steward": MISS P. A. MARSHALL, Mus. Bac., L.T.C.L.

Prefects:

W. Harris (Head), G. Bolton, C. Farr, K. Haddad, M. Hogben, C. A. Hubrick, A. McGregor, W. Pita, R. Ratana, R. Rehu, G. Tetley, I. Tonga.

Captains:

School House: R. Ratana. Football: R. Tupou

Simmonds House: A. McGregor

Cricket: D. Tupou

CONTENTS

	Page
Wesley College Board and Staff	3
Foreword	5
General Notes	6
College Diary, 1957	8
Films and Pictures, 1957	10
Chapel and Church Affairs	11
Simmonds House Notes	12
School House Notes	13
Y.F.C. Notes	13
The Farm	15
Hobbies Club	15
Scout Notes, 1957	16
Wesley College St. John Cadet Ambulance Division	17
Form Notes	19
Football Notes	26
Cricket Notes	28
Tennis Notes	29
Athletic Sports	30
Prepared Speeches	31
Annual Concert, 1957	31
Programme for Speech-Day and Prize-Giving	33
Annual Prize-Giving, 1956	33
Examination Successes	34
Cups and Trophies, 1956	34
The Old Boys	35
School Roll, 1957	35

Wesley College Collegian

Vol. XXX.

DECEMBER, 1957

FOREWORD

I have been dipping into some back numbers of the "Collegian," and have found it both a sobering and a stimulating experience.

There is the buoyant note in the issues up to 1931. In 1928 there were 105 on the Roll. But in 1932, we read—"The year has been one of very great difficulty . . . fewer enrolments, fewer Maori boys on Government Scholarships, greatly reduced prices for farm products, yet little reduction possible in overhead expenses. But, although we do not know what the future holds, we press resolutely forward."

In 1933, the outlook was brighter. The Roll had increased from 54 to over 60 and from then on showed steady improvement.

In the 1936 number reference is made to the passing of two whose names must never be forgotten at this College: the Rev. J. H. Simmonds and Mr. Maurice Harding.

Mr. Simmonds was Principal at Three Kings from 1895, but a new Wesley College was his chief work for the next 20 years. Three steps were necessary; to collect funds, to choose a site, and to obtain Parliamentary sanction. He succeeded, and since 1923 the College at Paerata has been an established fact. How well he laid the foundations!

To Mr. Harding we owe a great debt of gratitude. Thanks to his bequest to the College, we have been able to expand and develop as not even he could ever have envisaged.

Mr. Simmonds and Mr. Harding have passed on, but the present College is an enduring reminder of their contribution to its life and purpose.

One thousand nine hundred and fifty-seven has been a good year—building extensions; improvement in facilities in all departments; a good working spirit in the class-rooms; a very full programme in Sports and Club activities; many visits paid, and visitors received; a busy and helpful staff—above all, the knowledge that here we all have a wonderful opportunity and privilege—that we may assist in the development of Youth to the Glory of God.

E. M. MARSHALL.

GENERAL NOTES

Staff—Valedictory:

Mr. D. Tollan, B.Sc., on November 4th, 1956.

Mr. I. S. J. Lloyd on January 31st, 1957.

Mr. E. G. Widgery on May 9th, 1957.

Also Messrs. D. H. Thompson (Farm), W. Goldsmith (Farm), J. F. Selby (Grounds), P. Conroy (General Hand). Mrs. Selby, First Cook from February 1954 to March 1957, left to take up another appointment.

Special mention is made of Mr. E. Wadham later.

Welcome—To the Teaching Staff:

Mr. H. H. Marshall, B.A., formerly of Thames.

Mr. P. F. M. Rowland, B.Sc., formerly of South Australia.

Mr. T. Crudgington, formerly of Auckland.

Mr. J. V. Buckton, formerly of Papakura.

To the Farm Staff:

Messrs. J. Hackett, R. E. Wyatt, M. Welham.

To General Staff:

J. Young, F. H. Hartridge, W. E. Reeve, W. T. Sapsford.

To Domestic Staff:

Mrs. J. Reeve, Miss L. Mehrtens, Miss M. Rangi, Miss L. Herangi.

Mr. E. Wadham—On October 20th, 1957, Mr. Wadham formally tendered his resignation as Handyman-Carpenter at the College. He had been ill for a few months, and considers that the time has come for him to retire.

Mr. Wadham came to the College in September 1930. One of the Board's most loyal employees, he has seen many changes, and has had a great deal to do literally with altering the shape of things. He is a tradesman of great skill, and many a boy has reason to be thankful that he worked with him on Carpentry jobs; just as the College is grateful that he has been on hand for so long to do them.

We shall miss Mr. Wadham. Although the Board of Governors will show some tangible recognition of their appreciation, everyone knows that nothing that can be given or said can express adequately what we feel when we consider his many years of loyal and devoted service. Our best to you, Mr. Wadham!

Building and Extensions:

As stated last year, that we would be extending the College once the major step of erecting an Assembly Hall had been taken, we have this year in fact gone ahead more quickly than we had at first thought possible.

In February the Board considered the desirability and possibility of increasing the size of the *Dining-room*. This had housed 152 boys plus staff last year when it could comfortably take no more than about 120. Plans were drawn up, estimates considered, and then the Contractors came in. The driving force throughout in regard to the planning of the stages of the work and keeping up the pace is a member of the Teaching Staff, the Woodwork Instructor, Mr. J. V. Buckton.

By November, we have a fine new Dining-room, big enough to seat 300; an additional Kitchen; a Staff dining-room, an extra shelter-shed, together with modern furnishings, panelling, light fittings, drainage system. A flat for the Senior Resident Master has been completed at the same time.

The Board then turned to the possibility of enrolling more students and decided that it would be possible to take an extra 25 boys next year. It has meant the modernising of the House ablution and toilet facilities, and this will be completed by next February.

Next on the list will be additional Class-rooms and Hostels, with increased Staff accommodation—and an adequate Library!

During the year the Pine-Organ, purchased from Trinity College, was erected, the Dedication Service taking place on October 13th, 1957.

Roll of the School:

This remained the same as for 1956, with 152. For next year there are 175 enrolments, all boarders.

It is interesting to note that on the present Roll, on third are in Forms 5 and 6; and approximately a third follow the Agriculture course. There are seven full-time teachers and four part-time instructors.

The Principal's Trips to Manila in August and Fiji in September:

As Rotary Information Counsellor for N.Z., the Principal was required to attend an Institute in Manila to which came representatives from South Africa, Australia, India, Singapore, Hong-Kong, Philippines, Japan, and U.S.A. The distance covered by Mr. Marshall was 10,000 miles; time absent was 11 days; and one of

the highlights was a visit to Wesley College, Cabana Tuan, in the Philippines.

In the August/September holidays, Mr. Marshall travelled on Rotary business to Fiji Islands, and again was able to visit several schools and meet staff and students

Odds and Ends.

From a Latin paper: "Permulta docet experientia" means "too many doctors spoil the experiment."

In illustration of a word: "He led a *sedentary* life because his wife had gone on holiday"—i.e., he took it sitting down!

Innovations in domestic arrangements in the Third Term—Lunch at midday and dinner in evening; Supper for the School after evening Prep.; new dining-tables (formica top) with chairs, so that eight boys sit together for a meal, restaurant-style; a walk-in chiller where the pantry was, a servery and preparation-kitchen in addition to the "cooking-kitchen," and two small diningrooms for staffs; a large canopy under which boys parade in the dry before entering the dining-hall ("Hall' is now a better word to use); eight separate shower boxes in each House instead of the former mass-spraying affair; stainless steel for basins, sinks, and what-have-you; and in due course a new hot-water system for the whole College.

It is necessary to note that with all this going on this year, the Matrons have survived, and the boys have never missed a meal.

COLLEGE DIARY, 1957

February

- 6—Boys come into residence.
- 14—Visit from Mr. O. G. Oberg of Australia, and Mr. H. Thomas of Auckland.
- 16—Franklin A. & P. Show, visited by Senior Agriculture Students.
- 20—Visit from Commander Ashdown, Director of Naval Recruiting.

March

- 5-College Swimming Sports at Pukekohe.
- 6—Karaka School Picnic at the College. General Motors—"Preview of Progress."
- 7—Inter-Secondary Schools Swimming Sports at Pukekohe.
- 9-Old Boys' Harbour Cruise for Senior Boys.

- 12—Visit from Dr. R. B. Lew, President-General of the Methodist Church of Australia.
- 13—Members of Pukekohe Rotary Club visit the College to give "This is my job" talks.
- 16-Athletics Sports at the College.
- 23—Rally of Members of Franklin Methodist Churches, addressed by Sister Rita Snowden, Vice-President of Conference.

South Auckland Athletics Sports at Pukekohe.

- 30-South Auckland Sports at the College.
- April 10—Easter Service in Chapel for M.W.M.U. followed by Garden Party.
 - 19-23-Easter Exeat.
 - 25—Anzac Day—Church Parade, address by Mr. H. H. Marshall. B.A.
- May 9-28—May Vacation.
- June 9-Choral Service at Central Mission, Airedale St.
 - 15-Old Boys' Reunion.
 - 16—Choral Service at Kingsland Methodist Church.
- July 5-8-Long Week-end Exeat.
 - 6-Pukekohe Methodist Circuit Social.
 - 14—"Honouring Age" Committee's outing for Old Folks at College.
- August 1-11—The Principal on visit to Philippines.
 - 6—College Concert at Bicentenary Hall, Pitt St., for St. John's Methodist Church,
 - 10—College boys assist with Corso Collection in Pukekohe.
 - 11—Men's Fellowship Service in the Chapel; Preacher: Rev. Dr. R. Dudley, President of Conference.
 - 13-College Concert in Assembly Hall.
 - 17—Display of "Magic" to School in Hall.

22 to

September 17-Vacation.

- 22-District Parade of Scouts and Guides in Chapel.
- 25—Old Boys' Debate. Subject: "That we pity our Grandchildren."
- 29—Choral Service at Pitt St. Methodist Church

October

- 5—Comic Opera, "The Bachelor Duke," presented in College Hall by Remuera Methodist Church Choir.
- 6-Choral Service at St. Paul's Methodist Church. Hamilton
- 13-Commemoration Service in Chapel. Preacher: Rev. W. Walker.

Dedication of Pine Organ by Rev E W Hames, M.A.

25-30-Labour Day Exeat.

- December 6—Annual Banquet for boys and staff.
 - 8—Carol Services Exhibition of work.
 - 11—Speech Day and Prize-Giving. Speaker: Rev. Dr. I'. O. Williams, President of Conference.

FILMS AND PICTURES, 1957

Thirty-five programmes, including:

February-Sleeping Car to Triest; San Demetri; London; Mr. Drake's

March—Planter's Wife: The Seekers: Smugglers' Island: Tanganyika: Morning Departure.

April—Sir Bridges to Cross: One Good Turn.

June-Elusive Pimpernel: You Never Can Tell: Fiddlers Three; The Little World of Dcn Camillo.

July-Rawhide Years; Above Us the Waves; Man of the Moment; The Sea Shall Not Have Them.

August-You Know What Sailors Are: Made in Heaven.

September—The Night My Number Came Up: The Colditz Story.

October—Folly To Be Wise; This Island Earth; Abbot and Costello To Mars.

November-Pink String and Sealing Wax; Broken Journey; Stand at Apache Pass; Gilbert and Sullivan; Venetian Bird.

In addition we have shown films from the National Film Library: Corso films; Crusader films; and films from the Religious Film Society.

Coloured slides have been shown during the year, notably those supplied by Miss Wilcox. A fine collection of coloured slides of the College and College life is being made "for the record."

CHAPEL AND CHURCH AFFAIRS

Highlights in this year's activities are seen in the "College Diary" for the vear—the Choral Services taken by the boys in a number of City Churches; the Commemoration and Carol Services; Rallies and Annual Services for Circuit or District organisations, with addresses by prominent speakers.

Preparation for these functions requires much work. The Choir under Mr. Claude Laurie; the provision of flowers, and Church music by Miss P. A. Marshall; the boys who act as stewards; the Choir and the Choral Speakers—all have important parts to play in ensuring success.



The Sunday School is 25 strong this year, under the guidance of the Misses P. A. and M. J. Marshall. Organists have been Miss P. A. Marshall, Miss M. J. Marshall, and A. J. Pankhurst.

There are 37 in the Divinity class which is conducted by the Principal each week. Several groups have conducted Services in the Circuit during the year, and a dozen are called on in turn to read Lessons in Chapel.

Maori students have met each Quarter for a service with the Rev. Rangi Rogers, B.A., and a group has gone periodically to assist with Maori Services in Pukekohe. Church Membership classes have been held in the Third Term and a number of boys have been received as Members of the Church.

Our appreciation goes to all who have assisted in the affairs of the Chapel—boys, preachers, helpers and worshippers.

SIMMONDS HOUSE NOTES

Guided by the tender mercies of Mr. Burrow and prefects Farr, Haddad, McGregor, Pita IV and Tonga II another year has rolled on, and another sixty-odd boys are so much nearer to following the House motto of "Cleanliness is next to Godliness."

The squad system underwent some minor adjustments this year and up to date squad four has led its seven rivals. With the alterations we lost Mr. Burrow to School House, and although we wish him well, we hope, for our own sakes, that he won't be quite so successful in his new position. However, we gained Mr. Ballantine and we welcomed him with wide (very wide) opened arms.

We also had to bid farewell to prefects Gibbons and Rolfe who left to enter into that world of hayseed and rabbit burrows. We congratulate Farr and Pita who arose out of the ranks to replace them.

In the field of sport we temporarily kneel beaten, but unbowed, to School House. Although we have not conquered, we have fought well, and have thus fulfilled the objective of sport. However, although School House has retained the Winstone Cup, we too have had our hour, and have produced the Junior Sports, Junior, Intermediate and Senior Cross Country, and Senior Swimming Champions.

Although the Winstone Cup has been somewhat elusive during the last few years we have reason to be optimistic for the future as this year our Juniors "romped home" in the Rugby, Athletic, and Cross Country competitions.

We also have had successes in other spheres and our congratulations go to E. Rolfe for attaining Queen's Scout status, and talented E. Tonga for painting another mural masterpiece.

Our thanks go to the masters, the prefects, the squad leaders, and to all those who performed the countless little tasks that go with the efficient running of a House.

To those who depart from our noble ranks at the end of the year we wish you the best of luck; to those who return with the new year we offer you encouragement for an even more successful year; to one and all we extend the season's compliments.

SCHOOL HOUSE NOTES

School House, under the guidance of Mr. Crudgington and the House Prefects, has again done well during the year.

We excelled in Sports, as results recorded elsewhere show.

In the First Term we said farewell to Mr. Widgery who for some years was associated with this House. We wish him well in his new position in a co-educational School. We welcomed first Mr. Mabon, then Mr. Crudgington, in Term I, and wish to thank them for their assistance.

In the Third Term we were glad to return to the Squad Points System that had fallen into disrepute and not been used for some time. Mr. Burrow has taken over the House as Senior House Master, and we feel that we have a new lease of life.

All kinds of rumours are flying about. Some are proving to be true judging by the sound of falling bricks heard occasionally in the bathrooms. Yes, it's a fact. We are having new showers, better hot water supply, new toilets—and probably a whole lot of new rules!

And what's this we hear about a third House? What will its name be? Who will its first members be? We can hardly wait for the answers.

In the meantime, our thanks to staff and friends (including Simmonds House), and Season's Greetings to all.

Y.F.C. NOTES, 1957.

We have had an extremely interesting and rather a full year. On the 15th and 16th February the club acted as stewards at the Annual Franklin A. & P. Show held at Pukekohe.

Five places were gained in the Y.F.C. Stock Judging Competition on the 16th.

Following this, on March 6th, the club entered in the Annual District Y.F.C. Stock Judging Competition held at the Franklin Show Grounds. Eighteen places were gained by boys in our club, one of which was the highest aggregate prize, won by R. E. Buckley.

A visit to the Waikeria Pig Breeding Centre on 24th June proved to be very interesting and helpful as did the trip to the Westfield Freezing Works on the 1st July. Here, the films, lectures, displays, the killing, cleaning, classing and cutting up of chiller beef for export, proved a very valuable experience to the club.



During the year we have had two lectures and one film evening. One of the lectures, by Mr. Durham, was on veterinary duties, while the other was by Mr. Merry on Department of Agriculture matters. Thanks go to Mr. Buckton, our Woodwork Master, for supplying us with a film evening.

Our "A" Grade Debating Team (Rolfe, Keyte, Mune, Hogben) won the Franklin District "A" Grade Debating Competition, but when representing the Franklin District in the National Y.F.C. Debating Competition we were defeated in the first round. The "B" Grade Team (Hogben, Turner, Walker) gained 2nd place in the District Debating.

The club extends its best wishes and its thanks to our Senior Advisory Member, Mr. J. L. Browning, and to our Chairman of the first two terms and leader of the "A" Grade Debating Team, Edwin Rolfe, who left at the end of the second term. We should also like to congratulate Michael Hogben who was elected in his place at Chairman.

All in all the Y.F.C. year for 1957 has been very interesting and enjoyable and I hope that next year's Y.F.C. is as fortunate as we have been.

—I. MUNE.

THE FARM

We can take some satisfaction from the fact that the Wesley College Farm not only fulfils the very important requirement of being run as an economic unit, but also provides that very essential practical knowledge for Agriculture students, so that they are not a slave to the text book, but are in fact better equipped to put their knowledge to practical purposes.

Once again we can report a year of progress, not the zenith of our hopes, but something on which to build, an incentive, a spur to greater effort. Perhaps it could be expressed in verse:

We have not wings, we cannot soar

But we have feet to scale and climb,

By slow degrees, by more and more,

The cloudy summits of our time.

—LONGFELLOW.

—J. L. B

HOBBIES CLUB

The Hobbies Club is one of the most enthusiastically-followed groups in the College. In fact there are so many hobbyists that on Thursday nights the Woodwork Room is bulging at the walls, and those who are squeezed out seek refuge under the Hall.

There has been a great variety of models put out, some of which are still on the secret list. We hope to be able to recognize them when they are completed.

To mention but a few of the things produced in the Hobbies Nights—there are plaster casts, model aeroplanes, surf-boards, water-skis, coffee-tables, canoes, broken tools, deck-chairs, lamp-stands and a great amount of noise (much to the anguish of the conscientious (?) Form 5 next door).

The harrassed tools have withstood the stress and strain extremely well (all things considered). It is only fair to add that the band-saw, thicknesser and lathe are all undergoing an overhaul, and that the sharpening of tools has supplied many hours of blissful work on the grindstone for the fortunate trouble-makers.

Timber shortages were a major problem for a long time, but strangely enough nobody seems to have worried about shortages since the builders began work on the new Dining-Hall.

Another problem was storage space. Until recently the Principal's previous office has borne a strong resemblance to an Air Force dumping ground in miniature with planes and bits of planes hanging around waiting (in vain) for repairs.

Smoking is not, as one may assume, the cause of the bluish smoke haze hanging limply around the buildings. It is, in tact, due to the small diesel and petrol engines the boys use on their aeroplanes, which, but for the hobbies group, would have remained unmade. Everyone has gained much pleasure from watching these planes fly, but even more from watching them come to grief.

Next year it is proposed (and certainly hoped by the boys) that the hobbies activities will be expanded to include Photography, Film Appreciation (Winter term), Simple Radio, Wood-Carving, and Bookbinding.

_I MUNE

SCOUT NOTES, 1957

One thousand nine hundred and fifty-seven marks the tenth year of Scouting at Wesley. We regret having to default the Lawson Shield (for Campcraft) this year after having held it for two years running.



At the end of the First Term, our Scoutmaster, Mr. Widgery, left us, and to him go our best wishes and sincere thanks for all he has done for us and the time he has given up to us.

Later in the year, we also lost Rolfe, our A.S.M., who had just become a Queen's Scout—the highest honour a scout can receive. We give him our heartiest congratulations and wish him all the best for the future.

We welcome Mr. Rowland who has consented to take over the leadership of the Troop, although he has had no previous experience in Scouting. We gratefully thank him for filling in the gap and wish him every success.

Troop leaders are: Mr. P. Rowland, S.M.; R. Cheeseman, T.L.; Senior Patrol, H. Walker; Kotares, R. Becroft; Rurus, G. Dick; Kororas, D. Tupou; Keas, M. Anderson.

Last year, the Knife for the most progressive scout of the year went to M. Anderson, and the Patrol Axe went to the Kotare Patrol under R. Cheeseman, P.L.

We welcome the many newcomers to the Troop this year, and to all those leaving, we wish the very best.

—R.W.C. —R.I.B., Scout Scribe.

WESLEY COLLEGE ST. JOHN AMBULANCE CADET DIVISION

One thousand nine hundred and fifty-seven has been another successful year for the Division. Throughout the year a high standard of efficiency was maintained by the 12 seniors and 13 juniors.

The activities during the year have been varied. We commenced with probationers studying for their First Aid Certificate, for Junior and Senior Certificates. Instructive talks were given by Mr. Squier and the cadets were examined by Dr. Howes and Mr. J. Pearce. Our thanks go to Mr. Squier, Mr. J. Pearce and Dr. Courtis for their generous help.

This was followed by the re-examination of cadets. All passed and this enabled us to continue with the proficiency subjects: Clerical Ability, Public Service, Fire-fighting, Interpretership, Physical Education, Signalling, Handicrafts, and a number of others. We would like to thank all those members of the staff and others who have helped so much with the instruction and examination for the certificate.

During the year the Division manned a Casualty tent on Sports Day, and cadets were on duty during the football season. In November the Annual Inspection was held in Eden Park.



Front Row: J. V. Buckton, J. L. Browning, J. L. Ballantine, E. M. Marshall, H. C. Squier, Miss B. H. Marshall, H. H. Marshall Back Row: P. Rowland, C. Laurie, R. Burrow, T. Crudgington.



Front Row: R. Ratana, A. McGregor, W. Harris, E. M. Marshall, M. Hogben, G. Tetley, G. Bolton.

Back Row: C. Farr, R. Rehu, K. Haddad, I. Tonga, C. Hubrick, W. Pita.



This massed parade of all cadets in the Auckland area is the highlight of the year.

To Cadet Superintendent H. C. Squier go our thanks for his encouragement and work during the year. Other officers were Sgt. I. Kimpton, Hon. Sgt. R. Iles and Corporals W. Pita and G. Taiepa.

Some of our members are leaving this year, and we wish them all the best. Those who remain will always endeavour to live up to the highest traditions of the Division.

—I.K.

FORM VI

We are eleven in number, and all prefects. We've had a fairly arduous year what with the dislocation caused by extensive building alterations and additions, modifications of the House system and night starvation. This night starvation is an excellent example of how the sins of the fathers are visited upon the children. Unfortunately we inherited an undesirable reputation from last year's prefects and prejudice of this kind dies hard. Had T. S. Eliot been a prefect deprived of his supper we feel sure he would have written his "Hollow Men" more in this wise:

THE HOLLOW MEN

T

We are the hollow men
We are the "huffed" men
Screaming together
Frontpiece with empty maw. Alas!
Our raised voices when
We complain together
Are ignored and meaningless
As a toaster without bread
Or CAT'S feet on a blanketless bed
Near a robbed larder.

П

The pies are not here
There are no pies here
In this ALLEY of empty jars
In this hollow ALLEY
This empty maw of our lost Kingdoms
In our night meeting place
We grope together
And avoid speech
About food and the shrinking liver.

Ш

This is the starved land
This is the fruitless land
Hopeless unless the pies reappear
Or the replenished jar
Cornu Copia flows
From that much higher Kingdom
The only hope of empty men.

IV

Here we search round the orchard bough Orchard bough, orchard bough Here we search round the crchard bough At one o'clock in the morning.

> Between the tea And the breakfast Between the sunset And the sunrise Falls the shadow

> > For you locked the pantry.

Between six in the evening And eight in the morning Between satisfaction And new desire Falls the shadow

The time is very long.

For you locked The time is For you locked the

This is the way the term ends. This is the way the term ends. This is the way the term ends. Not with a bulge but a rumble.

We have had a wonderful year really, and those who are leaving this term are sorry that it is coming to a close. It will be a big break to part from old friends, and to sever old associations with the school that has been their home for so many years.

We should like to thank the Principal and Masters for all that they have done to help us, and to wish them and all the staffs the Compliments of the Season.

FORM: V

Form V contains three distinct groups.

They are: The cultured or academic

The commercial

The agricultural.

To illustrate our different interests and points of view we have selected certain examples of artistic expression composed by members of each group, and to show how very democratic we are, we shall begin with an exquisite rural ditty contributed by 5C, the Agricultural Form. Notice how this piece of scientific writing builds up by means of cumulative imagery to a devastating climax

BOVINE BOUNTY

Let academic Forms the cow belittle, It matters not to us a jot or tittle. I'd like to see those clever fellows flummox With four reciprocating stomachs. And though they feed all day on this and that, The only thing they do is build up fat. The cow from most unpromising material, Makes milk to pour upon our breakfast cereal, To him, we say, who only jeers and mocks, "Let's see you be as clever as an ox."

The second poem is the work of a 5B member. This piece of didactic writing shows a complete marriage of the practical and the artistic.

TYPIST TIPS

If you want to get on in the business world
And show that you're frightfully clever,
There are certain expressions you must always use
And others you mustn't use ever.

Say DONATE in your letters but never use give,
Take care to RESIDE and not simply to live,
You LOCATE when you find, you PROCEED when you go,
You EXPEDITE matters you think are too slow.
When you end, TERMINATE, and ACQUAINT when you tell,
Use PURCHASE for buy, CONVALESCE, to get well,
And if you should wish to seem quite orthodox,
Don't be backward in using RE, INST, ULT, and PROX.

Finally we present a 5A poem. This delicate pastoral has been commended by competent critics for its subtle rhythms and its powerful use of bathos.

BUCOLIC BLISS

We are the sons of Nature,
Rare buds upon the bough.
Our friends the thrush and starling,
The Snowdrop and the Cow.

We sit among the daisies, And pluck their petals sweet. We scramble up the mountain paths, And thorns get in our feet.

We wander o'er the meadows, To where the river flows. We paddle at its crystal edge With grit between our toes.

To us a noble classic,
More precious is than bread.
But just to mortify the flesh,
We oft have bread instead.

We have had a happy year but shall not know how successful it has been until the School Cert. results come out in January, 1958.

Our thanks go to our Form Masters, Mr. Ballantine and Mr. Buckton, for their patient help during the past year.

To all we wish a Merry Christmas and a refreshing holiday.

FORM IV ABC

To further the cause of Democracy we have established ourselves as a political party which we feel sure will overwhelm all opposition in the coming election.

Our 4AB Form Master, Mr. Burrow, is our leader, and our 4C Form Master, Mr. H. Marshall, the secretary of the party. This is our proposed Cabinet of Ministers:

Rt. Hon. R. W. BURROW, B.A. Prime Minister and Minister of Infernal Affairs
Hon. H. Marshall, B.A.
Secretary of the Party and Minister of Defence
Hon. G. Gallichan Minister of Boilers
Hon. C. E. Glover Minister of Scientific Research
Hon. J. Hayes Minister of Transport
Hon. R. Manson Minister of Public Health
Hon. M. J. Noble Minister of Contemporary Culture
Hon. E. Rosemergy Minister of Cricket Cupboards
Hon. B. Southee Minister of Sheep Farming
Hon. G. Wahanui Minister of Maori Affairs
Hon. N. Williams
Minister of Police, Rabbit Boards, and Youth Movements
Hon. I. Peters Minister of Gumdigging

We promise our supporters the world, and as inter-planetary travel and exploration advances we may, if elected, be in a position to promise not only this world but also several others.

We should like to take this opportunity of welcoming Mr. H. Marshall, our new Maths Master, and Mr. Rowland our new Science Master, and to thank them and Mr. Burrow for their guidance and instruction during the past year.

As there has long been the need for a school song, 4A has composed the following and hopes that, when suitable music has been composed to fit these words, it will be sung at future break-ups, blow-ups and breakdowns.

VERSE ONE (for those returning)

Dulce Cantamus to thee, our College, Domus discipulorum, seat of knowledge, Homines docti we're proud of you, Bonus Dux we love you too. Caput nod and manus shake, We'll be back for your dear sake, We shall see you bye and bye, Valete Magistri et Agricolae.

VERSE TWO (for those who are not so fortunate)

O Alma Mater, some of us Shall not return by omnibus To dwell within your Muris dear. O Oculi hold back that tear. We'll see again the Dominos, We'll meet again the pueros. Now let us make our farewells blunt, They know they were amati sunt.

FORM III ABC

We are the babies of the Secondary Department—the green horns. We are the envy of Forms I and II, the whipping post of Form IV, the joke of Form V, the contempt of Form VI, and the despair of everyone else. We have drive without direction, humour without humanity, and ignorance without end.

We are the "sputnik" of the Secondary School—a small Master-projected object, far away from the parent body, outside the atmosphere of knowledge. However, we know that when at length we do enter this atmosphere we shall, like the Russian satellite, disintegrate, disappear, and lose our identity in the maze and confusion of learning. The Sixth Form is full of these spent shells and whenever one of us looks at these Academic derelicts he thinks.

"This will happen to me!"

Let's not waste time, however, on those who are jealous of our youth. Let us because of our past experience give some advice to those in Form II who will be in our shoes next year. Here it is:

WHAT EVERY NEW THIRD FORMER SHOULD KNOW

Don't use a prefect's nickname,
Though his older friends do so.
Don't ask him (if he needs a shave),
What makes his beard grow.
Don't ask the 1st XV fullback,
If he knows he lost the game.
Or a 1st XI bowler,
When he hopes to get his aim.
Don't tell the English Master,
That poetry's all bunk.
Don't ask him if he's getting fat,
Or if his coat's just shrunk.

And never during lessons,
Keep looking at the time;
And should you suggest the clock has stopped,
Oh boy, what a pantomime!

And so, in the words of Tiny Tim,

"Here's a Merry Christmas to all the World and, may God bless us everyone."

FORMS I & II

The 25 active, hard-working members of the Intermediate Department all agree that although they are the Juniors of the College they inhabit the tidiest and best classroom—Room 4! We have had three Class Captains in Form II, thus giving each boy an opportunity to lead the class; John Mathews, Term I; Marsh Kingi, Term II; Terkel Madsen, Term III. Fatafehi has been the Class Captain of Form I during the year. We wish to thank these boys for their services and leadership.

The Class Library has been a source of much enjoyment. There are many excellent books for the boys to read, among them books by Ronald Syme and Geoffrey Trease. We wish to thank the Librarians, John Mathews and Terkel Madsen, for their untiring work.

The Junior Dormitory is now a memory and the Junior boys are scattered into various squads in their Houses.

All through the winter months the boys in the Junior Play practised at the Principal's House. "The Red Meteor" was about a delightful family, comics, supermen, gangsters and a detective. We will never forget the two Concerts at which the play was produced, when John Hubbard almost stole the show, as Judy! The cast of the play was: Robert Hooper as Pete, John Hunt as Mother, Parker English at Father, Sam O'Shea as Bob, Godfrey Bradey-Robinson as the Detective, John Hubbard as Judy, and Gary Carter (I) as Lola.

We played a few exciting games of football this year. When we travelled to Pukekohe Primary School we were overwhelmed by experienced players but did benefit from the game. We enjoyed the friendly games with Karaka Primary School. We wish to thank our coach, C. Farr. Next year we are looking forward to playing many friendly games with neighbouring Primary Schools. In the class we have many promising swimmers, footballers, athletes and cricketers.

Before the end of the year we will be visiting the Auckland Memorial Museum. We are all looking forward to our class picnic and "sausage sizzle" which will take place somewhere on the College farm!

RUGBY, 1957

General: This has been a very full season, with five Saturday teams as well as Inter-House matches, Primary Schol matches, Inter-Form matches and seven-a-sides, and various other friendly fixtures.

School House won the Rugby Competition, by winning six out of the nine matches. Form VI won the Inter-Form seven-a-side. Forms I and II won two of their four matches against other Primary Schools.



FIRST XV

The First XV had a good season, apart from a bad patch early on when they lost four matches running.

RESULTS

v. Karaka, 16—3, 0—5, 11—6.	v. Papakura, 3—19.
v. Ardmore, 6—14, 0—6, 6—6.	v. Varsity, 6-0.
v. Bombay, 6-3, 10-0.	v. Old Boys, 3—3.
v. Port Albert, 6-0, 12-11.	v. St. Stephens, 6-19.
v. Army, 3—15.	v. Huntly College, 19—0.

Played 16, Won 8, Lost 6, Drew 2. Points for 113. Points against 107.

Team: R. Tupou (Capt.), S. Ratana (V. Capt.), R. Thompson, I. Kimpton, G. Denize, D. Tupou, I. Hamiora, R. Rehu, J. Peters, W. Pita, G. Taiepa, R. Middleton, W. Harris, Hebrew, R. Cocker, H. Walker, I. Tonga, I. Mune, C. Farr, G. Wahanui, R. Bell.

The team showed fine form in the latter part of the season, losing only two of the last 10 matches—one to Army, the leaders of the Third Grade Competition, and the other to a faster, heavier St. Stephens, after College had led 6—0 at half time. The Hickling Cup was retained by drawing with the Old Boys; the Port Albert Shield was captured and successfully defended; and Huntly College was defeated in atrocious wind conditions at Huntly.

Stars of a very strong pack were R. Cocker (especially in the lineout), and G. Denize (for tireless loose play). The inside backs of Pita, Ratana, Rehu and R. Tupou (who was the outstanding attacking back) developed into a very good combination as the season progressed. Fullback Thompson broke many opposing teams hearts with his prodigious line kicking. Shaky goal kicking cost the team at least three matches during the season.

SECOND XV

The second grade team had a fairly good season, winning four games, losing four and two drawn. Rolfe was the Captain and Maniapoto the vice-captain, and with their encouragement there was plenty of enthusiasm and keenness throughout the season. We had some strong hardworking forwards in Crosbie, Stevens, Iles I, Buckley, Pittams, Walford, Pollard II and Buckeridge, while Iles II and Maniapoto showed good attacking ability in the centre of the field. Unfortunately we were weak on the wings but towards the end of the season Kennedy, Axtens and Te Kuru gained confidence and should develop into good players by next year. We have some useful young players in Massey I and II, Ward, Tonga III, Stokes III and Flatt and they all played well against some heavy opposition.

The backs were quite forceful in attack but they will have to learn to throw the ball about more and also get their opponents hard and sure in defence.

There was a good team spirit throughout and we had some enjoyable trips out to St. Stephens, Maramarua and Huntly.

THIRD XV

The Third XV had a very good season, winning seven out of their 11 matches and drawing two. Outstanding players were Smith, Hosking and Winstone I.

Team: Becroft (Capt.), Mortensen (V. Capt.), M. Bennett, Harnett, Lindberg, Smith, Rivers, Whistler, Winstone I, Hoyland, Koroheke I, Cheesman, Hill, Madsen I, Hosking and Vernon I.

FOURTH GRADE A

This team did not quite line up to early expectations, and won only four of its 12 matches. However there were some very promising boys in the team, including M. Anderson (Capt.), Hart, de Jongh.

FOURTH GRADE B

This very light team, which played against boys up to three stone heavier, did not win a single match, but played nevertheless with great determination and never gave in throughout the season.

CRICKET, 1956-57

This was a very successful season for the College. Three teams played each Saturday, and for part of the season a fourth played. The general standard of play continued to rise, and the 1st XI in particular, showed fine form.

School House convincingly won the Inter-House Competition.



FIRST' XI

The First XI was easily the most powerful the College has fielded in recent years. Only once was it defeated in the season, and that by only 14 runs. Eleven matches were played, three won and seven drawn. A feature was the brilliant fielding, especially by R. Tupou,

W. Pita and R. Rehu. The bowling was very steady, but the loss of Fagaloa after Christmas severely weakened the attack. The batting was more consistent than it had been in previous years, and the tail often wagged merrily. R. Rehu and D. Tupou were stylist attacking batsmen, while S. Ratana proved a valuable sheet anchor. Up till Christmas, the team was top of the Franklin Senior Competition, but defaults and draws cost the team the Championship.

Team: V. Kukutai (Capt. 1956), D. Tupou (Capt. 1967), C. Fagaloa, R. Rehu, R. Tupou, S. Ratana, G. Taiepa, A. Pankhurst, C. Farr, M. Anderson, W. Pita, and Mr. Burrow.

AVERAGES

BATTING

		DATING			
			Highest		
	Innings	Not Outs	\mathbf{Score}	Aggregate	Average
Mr. Burrow	8	1	71	210	30
S. Ratana	9	4	37*	141	28
R. Rehu	10	2	51*	213	27
D. Tupou	10	2	86*	168	21
		BOWLING	1		
	Overs	Maidens	Runs	Wickets	Average
C. Fagaloa	122.2	35	192	30	6.4
R. Rehu	90.2	32	178	18	9.9
D. Tupou	90	26	210	21	10

SECOND XI

The Second XI, ably captained by W. Harris, finished second in the Secondary Schools Senior Grade. They played 10 matches, won five, lost four and drew one. The star player was M. Anderson, until he was "bagged" by the First XI.

THIRD XI

This team was well led by Cheeseman and Rosemergy, and finished second in the Secondary School Junior Championship. It won five of its eight matches. M. Bennett and Passau scored most runs, while the wickets were evenly shared amongst Cheeseman, Rosemergy, and Bennett.

Special thanks to the Madsen brothers for scoring, and to Farquharson and Mathews on the Scoreboard. Also, the generosity of Mr. A. Bennett and Mr. Phillips for the gift and transport of two further tons of Port Albert soil.

TENNIS NOTES

SINGLES CHAMPIONSHIPS, 1956

A very keen interest was shown and it took four weeks at the end of the term to bring the three competitions to a conclusion.

Results:

Junior: M. Smith defeated N. McConnell 6-2, 6-3.

Intermediate: T. Tupou defeated R. Middleton 6-1, 6-2.

Senior: R. Rehu defeated R. Tupou 3-6, 7-5, 6-3.

"YANKEE" DOUBLES TOURNAMENT

A one day doubles tournament was held on December 4th, and the following gained highest points:

Junior: A. J. Pankhurst, M. Noble.

Intermediate: R. C. Middleton, I. G. Kimpton.

Senior: D. Tupou and Mr. Burrow.

ATHLETIC SPORTS, 1957

The 32nd Annual Athletics were held on the 16th March this year on a properly surveyed track. The weather remained fine until the concluding events, when rain slightly dampened the ardour of the officials and competitors.

Once again the sports provided competition to School and visitors alike and the centrally-situated high jump filled a long felt need.

The Scout Ambulance Stall sold ice cream, Coco Cola, and sweets to raise funds for its Hut.

Athletics has received great stimulus this year as the College was the host for the South Auckland Secondary Schools Athletics on the 30th March. Entries from nine other schools including co-educational schools, necessitated extra jumping pits being prepared and a full day's sports programme was carried through to a satisfactory conclusion without a break in the weather.

The College had full entries and were successful in gaining many places.

The following week a team of athletes represented the College at the Pukekohe meeting of the South Auckland Track Athletics. The College was successful in gaining two places in the Junior Section.

The Annual College Cross Country was run in fine weather on Monday the 15th April when School House gained $3\frac{1}{2}$ points to Simmonds House $2\frac{1}{2}$ for the Winstone Cup.

Results were as wollows:

	Senior	Intermediate	Junior
100 yards	Cocker Kimpton	Bell	Lindberg
220 yards	Kimpton	Bell	Lindberg
440 yards	McGregor	Bell	Ward
880 yards	McGregor	Cameron	
Hurdles 120 yards	Cocker,	Bell	Maniapoto
Mile	McGregor	Ward	

Long Jump	Kimpton	Pankhurst	Lindberg
Hop, Step	Kimpton	Cameron	Lindberg
High Jump	Tupou II	Thompson	Ward
Cricket Ball	Rehu	Thompson	Ward
Inter-House Relay	School	School	School
Discus	Vuibau	Bell	
Shot Put	Tonga II	Cameron	
Cross Country Championship	McGregor	Peters I	Green
Cross Country Handicap	Whistler	Pollard II	Glover
Championship	Kimpton	Bell	Lindberg Ward
Winstone Cup Points: Se	chool House 12	, Simmonds H	ouse 6

PREPARED SPEECHES

Junior Speeches—1956. These were not held this time. Senior Speeches—1957, held on August 19th.

There were five contestants, and all speeches were of a very high order. Members of the Staff were judges.

The subject was one of the following:

- 1. The Importance and Significance of Some Great Person.
- 2. The Geophysical Year.
- 3. Colonialism, past and present.

Boys from Forms IV, V, and VI were invited to compete. Length of Speeches, Seven Minutes.

The winner was G. Bolton, speaking on "Colonialism, Past and Present"; the runner-up was M. Noble, speaking on "Helen Keller."

ANNUAL CONCERT

Held in the Assembly Hall on August 13th, 1957

PROGRAMME: "GOD SAVE THE QUEEN"

CHOIR	
"O Life That Makest All Things New"	Longmire
"When De Stars Begin To Fall" arr	
"The Presence"	Brook
"Hark! The Organ Loudly Peals"	West

JUNIOR PLAY
"The Red Meteor"
PIANOFORTE DUET
"Rhapsodie Mignonne"
CHORAL SPEAKING
"Bright Is The Ring Of Words" Stevenson Extract from "The River" Salmon "There Was Joy In Heaven" Heber
FLUTE SOLOS
"Minuet in A"
PHYSICAL DISPLAY
ITEMS BY MAORI BOYS
Hakas, Action Songs, Spear Dance.
REMARKS
By the Principal Rev. E. M. Marshall
SENIOR PLAY
"The Dear Departed" Stanley Houghton
CHOIR
"The Little Boat" Wood-Foster "The Cuckoo" Martin Shaw "Westering Home" arr. Roberton
Concert Organiser and in Charge of Music and Choral Speaking Mr. Claude Laurie
Physical Display Mr. J. V. Buckton
Dramatic Items Mr. J. L. Ballantine and Miss B. H. Marshall
Accompanist Miss M. J. Marshall
- Miss M. J. Maishan

"THE BACHELOR DUKE"

On October 5th, 1957, in the College Assembly Hall, we were entertained by the St. Paul's Methodist Church Choir, Remuera, in the presentation of "The Bachelor Duke."

This is a Comic Opera, composed and directed by Mr. Leo Foster.

An appreciative audience was delighted with the whole performance, and the grateful thanks of the College goes to Mr. Foster in particular, and to his company, for coming out to us and for providing such splendid entertainment. The Hall Furnishings Fund was augmented by quite a considerable amount and for this we are grateful.

PROGRAMME FOR SPEECH-DAY AND PRIZE-GIVING December 5th, 1956 at 2,30 p.m.

THE NATIONAL ANTHEM

THE NATIONAL ANTHEM
HYMN
"O Come, All Ye Faithful."
CHOIR
"Joseph" Trebles arr. Somervell
"Cristemas" Tenors and Basses Baynon
REMARKS
By the Chairman of the Board J. S. Caughey, Esq.
REPORT
Of the Principal The Rev. E. M. Marshall
HYMN
"All Creatures of Our God and King."
PRESENTATION OF BOOKS, TROPHIES AND CERTIFICATES.
ADDRESS
By the Guest Speaker Rev. Dr. R. Dudley, M.A., D.D., F.R.E.S.
CHOIR
"Il Christ Were Born Where I Dwell" Webber
"A Child This Day Is Born" Traditional
DISMISSAL HYMN

ANNUAL PRIZE-GIVING, 1956

BENEDICTION

BOOK AWARDS

Head Prefect-H. C. Keyte.

Class Awards Form VI-W. Harris.

Form VA-G. D. Bolton. Form VB-I. F. Tonga.

"Lord, Dismiss Us With Thy Blessing."

Form VC—E. A. Rolfe.

Form IVA-D. Tupou.

Form IVB—R. I. Becroft.

Form IVC-1. B. Mune.

Form IIIA-W. A. Lindberg.

Form IIIB—C. G. Buckeridge. Form II-G. A. G. Tonga.

Form I-T. B. Madsen.

Dux of the School-H. C. Kevte.

Form I and II Special-P. E. Crane.

Aaron Best Award for Farming-C. W. Mercer.

Public Speaking: Senior-H. C. Keyte.

Arts and Crafts: Senior-I. Kimpton.

Junior-N. C. Pollard.

Divinity and Chapel—J. B. Marshall.

Old Boys Awards—J. R. Crosbie, B. H. Turner.

Rotary Award—R. A. Iles.

Maori Awards: Senior Farming-S. R. Pukinui.

Best Representative-E. Ngeru.

Special (Dept. of Maori Affairs)-W. Wanoa.

CUPS AND TROPHIES, 1956

Junior Swimming (Herbert Smith)-B. Curran. Intermediate Swimming (E. F. Mills)—H. Brown. Senior Swimming (Herbert Smith)-I. Tonga. Junior Athletics (Herbert Smith)-J. Cameron. Intermediate Athletics (Stuart Cup)-P. Green. Senior Athletics (Herbert Smith)-E. Ngeru, J. Duncan. Junior Steeplechase (Leslie Scott)-R. Green. Intermediate Steeplechase (Whaimutu Dewes)-A. Miller. Senior Steeplechase (Herbert Smith)-A. McGregor. Junior Tennis (John Court)-M. Smith. Intermediate Tennis (Griffith Bowl)-D. Tupou. Senior Tennis (Trounson)-R. Rehu. Table Tennis Doubles (N. Cheal)-R. Tupou, R. Rehu. Table Tennis Singles Cham. (A. M. Cliff)—R. Tupou. House Cup (Winstone)—School. Senior Speech (J. J. Boyce)—H. Keyte. Y.F.C. Shearing-R. Pukunui. Cricket (Stembridge)-D. Tupou. Scout Knife-A. M. Anderson. Patrol Axe—Kotare.

EXAMINATION SUCCESSES, CERTIFICATES AND SCHOLARSHIPS

Higher School Certificate, 1956:

J. Duncan, H. Keyte, J. Marshall.

Endorsed School Certificate, 1956:

J. Cheeseman, W. Harris, A. McGregor, E. Ngeru.

University Entrance, 1956:

W. Harris.

Gained School Certificate, 1956:

B. Barton, G. Bolton, C. Farr, P. Gibbons, M. Hogben, C. Hubrick, W. Ngatoa, W. Pita, E. Rolfe, G. Tetley, R. Tipene, I. Tonga, W. Wanoa, F. Watson.

Primary Leaving Certificate, 1956:

P. Crane, E. Harper, G. Johnson, M. Loveridge, A. Massey, R. Murray, R. G. Nixon, N. C. Pollard, R. Pollard, J. S. Tattersall, A. Tonga, K. N. Whitmore.

College Scholarship Holders, 1957:

G. D. Bolton, W. Harris, E. A. Rolfe, I. F. Tonga, D. Tupou, W. Pita, A. McGregor.

Maori Government Scholars, 1957:

M. Kemp, B. Moses, W. Pita, S. Stevens, G. Taiepa, V. Te Kuru, R. H. Thompson, G. Wahanui.

WESLEY COLLEGE OLD BOYS' ASSOCIATION

Highlights of the year as far as the College itself is concerned:

- 1. The Old Boys' Picnic for Senior Boys on March 9th. This year it took the form of a Harbour Cruise. Twenty-five Form V and VI boys with Mr. Knott spent a most enjoyable day travelling on the harbour by private launch.
- 2. The Old Boys' Reunion on June 15th, taking the form of a Church Service (when Rev. E. W. Hames, M.A. preached); the handing over of the Memorial Gates: Lunch as guests of the Board: the Annual Football Match (drawn game); the Annual Meeting (Mr. Keith Boyd, President; Mr. Eric Beavis, Secretary); the Annual Dinner; and Complimentary Concert by Present Boys to Old Boys.
- 3. Old Boys' Debate with Present boys. Subject: "That we pity our grandchildren"—the Old Bovs won, speaking for the Affirmative.

The Secretary of the Association is:

Maniapoto, J. P.

Kelly, R. A.

MR. E. BEAVIS. P.O. Box 2228, Auckland.

SCHOOL ROLL, 1957

FORM 1

			TIVE I	
	Bowmar, A. E. Bush, G. B. Carter, G. B. Carter, G. C.	Crosbie, D. J. Duncan, C. B. English, M. H. P. Fatafehi, S. F. V.	Hunt, J. L.	McKay, D. C. Pearsall, W. Vose, E. B. S. Williams, F.
		FOR	RM II	
	Bradey-Robinson, G. S. Duncan, W. H.	Kingi, M.	Madsen, T. B. Mathews, J. P. Moor, D. B. H.	O'Shea, S. M. Simmons, P. M. O Wallace, R. A. W.
		FOR	AIII N	
	de Jongh, G. H. R. Dobbie, R. A.	Hooper, R. R. Johnson, G. R. Milliken, I. G.	Parker, K. H. Stevens, S. Te Kuru, V.	Tonga, G. A. G. Ward, M. T. Winstone, J. C.
		FOR	M IIIB	
	Axtens, G. E. Bennett, M. L. Bennett, G. W. Collis, D. S.	Fraser, L. J. Hansen, P. V. Harnett, A. F. D. Hart, D. B.	Loveridge, N. E. Massey, G. A. Pollard, N. C.	Wellington, G. K Wheatley, G. S. Whitmore, K. H.
FORM IIIC				
	Banks, E. M. Dudding, D. B. Hosking, G. E. C.	Koroheke, K. Landon, L. B. Massey, A. R.	Moses, B. Murray, R. L. Passau, B. H.	Pollard, R. C. Tattersall, J. S. Wilson, O. M. R.

FORM IVA

Cameron, J. A.	Madsen, T. B.	Roycroft, T. R.	Wahanui, G.
Glover, C. E.	Mayes, T. R.	Thompson, R. H.	Walford, M. J.
Lindberg, W. A.	Noble, M. J.	Vernon, W. G.	Williams, C. N

FORM IVB

FORM IVC

Blake, R. C. Buckeridge, C. G. Douglas, S. M.	Mowat, I. D.	Pittams, R. T. Rivers, R. J. Smith, M. S. Southee, B. R.	Vuibau, I. M. Wilson, C. M. Winstone, R. A. Wootten, R. G.
Duley, S. M. G.	Peters, L. I.	Stokes R D	

FORM VA

FORM VB

Becroft, R. I. Cheeseman, R. W. Crosbie, J. R.	Herman, T. B. Iles, I. K.	Moller, R. W. Pankhurst, A. J. Ratana, R. T. A. W.	Ryan, T. J. Tahere, A. P. Tupou, R. O.
Dick, F. G.	Kennedy, R.		

FORM VC

Anderson,	Denize, G. J.	Turner, B. H.
I. E. M.	Dyer, D. J.	Vernon, T. R.
Buckley, R. E. Curran, B. D.	Farquharson, M. C.	 Walker, H. C.

FORM VIA

Harris, W. McGregor, A.

FORM VIB

Bolton, G. D. Farr, C. A. Gibbons, N. P.	Hogben, M. A. Hubrick, C. A.	Pita, W. Rolfe, E. A.	Tetley, G. E. Tonga, I. F.

FORM VIC

Haddad, K. M. Rehu, R. T. T. H.

STUDENT WORKERS

Elia, S. Unasa, H.



